








 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 1 of 4 
June 29, 2016 

City of Stayton 
City Council Meeting Action Minutes 

June 29, 2016 

LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA STREET, STAYTON 

Time Start: 7:00 P.M.     Time End:  8:18 P.M. 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 

COUNCIL STAYTON STAFF  
Mayor Henry Porter Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
Councilor Priscilla Glidewell Keith Campbell, City Administrator 
Councilor Ralph Lewis Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development 
Councilor Jennifer Niegel Rich Sebens, Police Chief (excused) 
Councilor Brian Quigley Andy Parks, Finance Consultant 
Councilor Joe Usselman Lance Ludwick, Public Works Director 
 David Rhoten, City Attorney (excused) 
 Charles Button, Police Lieutenant 

 
AGENDA ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
Announcements 
a. Additions to the Agenda 
 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc. 

 
None. 
 
Councilor Lewis declared a conflict of interest as 
he works for the Northwest Senior and Disability 
Services. He stated he will abstain from voting on 
the consent agenda item for renewal of their 
contract. 

Presentations / Comments from the Public None 
Consent Agenda 
a. June 6, 2016 City Council Meeting Minutes 
b. Senior Services Meal Site Agreement Renewal 
c. Approval of Abstract of Election Results – May 17, 2016 

Primary Election 

 
Motion from Councilor Niegel, seconded by 
Councilor Usselman, to approve the Consent 
Agenda. Motion passed 4:0 (Lewis abstained). 

Public Hearing 
Certifying Eligibility and Electing to Receive State Revenue 
Sharing Funds 

a. Staff Report 
b. Open Public Hearing 
c. Public Hearing 
d. Close Public Hearing 
e. Council Deliberation 
f. Council Decision on Resolution No. 943 and Resolution No. 

944 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
Mr. Parks reviewed the staff report. 
Mayor Porter opened the hearing at 7:03 p.m. 
No comment. 
Mayor Porter closed the hearing at 7:04 p.m. 
No further discussion. 
Motion from Councilor Quigley, seconded by 
Councilor Lewis, to approve Resolution No. 943. 
Motion passed 5:0. 

Motion from Councilor Quigley, seconded by 
Councilor Lewis, to approve Resolution No. 944. 
Motion passed 5:0.  



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 2 of 4 
June 29, 2016 

City of Stayton 2016-2017 Fiscal Year Budget 
a. Staff Report 
b. Open Public Hearing 
c. Public Hearing 
d. Close Public Hearing 
e. Council Deliberation 
f. Council Decision on Resolution NO. 945, Adopting the FY 

2016-2017C City Budget, Making Appropriations, and 
Levying Property Taxes for the Fiscal Year 

 
Land Use Files #9-04/16, Legislative Amendments to Land Use 
Development Code Zones 

a. Commencement of Public Hearing 
b. Staff Report – Dan Fleishman 
c. Questions from the Council 
d. Proponents’ Testimony 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
e. Opponents’ Testimony 
f. General Testimony 
g. Questions from the Public 
h. Questions from the Council 
i. Staff Summary 
j. Close of Hearing 
k. Council Deliberation 

 
l. Council Decision on Ordinance No. 996, Amending SMC 

Title 17, Regarding the Zones in which Crop Production is 
Permitted 

 
Mr. Parks reviewed the staff report. 
Mayor Porter opened the hearing at 7:13 p.m. 
No public comment. 
Mayor Porter closed the hearing at 7:14 p.m. 
No further discussion. 
Motion from Councilor Niegel, seconded by 
Councilor Lewis, to approve Resolution No. 945. 
Motion passed 5:0.  
 
 
 
Mayor Porter opened the hearing at 7:18 p.m. 
Mr. Fleishman reviewed the staff report. 
Brief discussion of map included in staff report. 
Adam Culbertson, owner of Home Grown 
Remedies, spoke in favor of the proposed changes 
including within the Commercial General zone.  
Mr. Culbertson also requested the distance 
requirement be lowered from 200 feet to 150 feet. 
However, this was an independent request not 
part of the agenda or public hearing. 
Sydney Levin, property owner of 1885 W. 
Washington Street, spoke in favor of the proposed 
changes and allowing in the Commercial General 
zone.  Mr. Culbertson received questions from the 
Council. 
John Huddenal spoke in favor of the ordinance as 
presented. 
None. 
None. 
None. 
None. 
Nothing further. 
Mayor Porter closed the hearing at 7:44 p.m. 
Council discussion of what adoption of this 
ordinance will allow.  
Motion from Councilor Glidewell to approve 
Ordinance No. 996 as presented. Motion died due 
to lack of a second. 
 
Councilor Quigley was not opposed to allowing in 
the industrial zones, but is opposed to allowing in 
the Commercial General. Councilor Niegel agreed. 
 
Motion from Councilor Niegel, seconded by 
Councilor Usselman, to approve Ordinance No. 
996 with modifications to only allow within Light 
Industrial and Commercial Industrial zones. 
Motion passed 5:0.  
 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 3 of 4 
June 29, 2016 

Ordinance No. 996 will return before the City 
Council for a second consideration at their next 
meeting on July 18th. 
 

Unfinished Business None 
New Business 
Resolution No. 946, Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget Appropriation 
Transfers 
a. Staff Report – Andy Parks 
 
b. Council Deliberation 
 
c. Council Decision  
 
 
 
Resolution No. 947, Authorizing an Interfund Loan Transfer from 
Vehicle Replacement to the Stormwater Fund 
a. Staff Report – Andy Parks 

 
b. Council Deliberation 

 
c. Council Decision  

 
 
 

Resolution No. 948, 2016-2017 Fees and Fines 
a. Staff Report – Keith Campbell 

 
b. Council Deliberation 

 
 
 

c. Council Decision 

 
 
 
Mr. Parks reviewed the staff report. 
 
None. 
 
Motion from Councilor Niegel, seconded by 
Councilor Ussleman, to approve Resolution No. 
946 as presented. Motion passed 5:0.  
 
 
 
Mr. Parks reviewed the staff. 
 
None. 
 
Motion from Councilor Quigley, seconded by 
Councilor Niegel, to approve Resolution No. 947 as 
presented. Motion passed 5:0. 
 
 
Mr. Campbell reviewed the staff report. 
 
Brief discussion of the reason for the increase in 
“Business Regulations” under Police Ordinance Bail 
for Violations from $500 to $1,000. 
 
Motion from Councilor Niegel, seconded by 
Councilor Usselman, to approve Resolution No.  
948 as presented. Motion passed 5:0. 

Staff / Commission Reports 
Finance Director’s Report – Cindy Chauran & Elizabeth Baldwin 
a. May 2016 Monthly Finance Department Report 
 
Police Chief’s Report – Lt. Charles Button 
a. May 2016 Statistical Report 
 
 
Public Works Director’s Report – Lance Ludwick 
a. May 2016 Operating Report 
 
Planning & Development Director’s Report – Dan Fleishman 
a. May 2016 Activities Report 
 

 
 
No further discussion. 
 
 
No further discussion. Mayor Porter inquired 
about dog licensing. 
 
 
No further discussion. 
 
 
No further discussion. 
 



 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 4 of 4 
June 29, 2016 

Library Director’s Report – Pam Pugsley 
a. May 2016 Activities 

 
Ms. Pugsley gave a brief update on the Library. 

Presentations / Comments From the Public None 
 

Business from the City Administrator • The July 5th City Council meeting will be 
cancelled. 

• Mr. Ludwick gave an update on the recent 
I-Serve event and thanked the volunteers 
for their time. 

• Mr. Campbell thanked Ken Cartwright for 
his years of service filming City Council 
meetings. 

• He also thanked Mr. Parks, staff, and the 
Budget Committee for their work on the 
new budget. 

Business from the Mayor None. 
 

Business from the Council None. 
Future Agenda Items – July 18, 2016 
a. Employee Recognition 
b. Wildlife Meadows Development Agreement 
c. Business Survey Results 
d. Property Maintenance Code 
e. Public Hearing – Code Amendments 
f. Monthly Staff Reports 

APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 18TH DAY OF JULY 2016, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL. 

 
 
Date:    By:   
  Henry A. Porter, Mayor 
 
 
Date:   Attest:   

 Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 
 
       
Date:  Transcribed by:        
   Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 



 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: July 18, 2016 

 SUBJECT: Second Consideration of Ordinance 996 Regarding Crop 
Production 

  
 
ISSUE 

The issue before the City Council is the second consideration of Ordinance 996, legislative text 
amendments to the Stayton Land Use and Development Code, Title 17, Chapter 17.16 regarding 
the zones in which crop production is permitted. 

At its June 29 meeting the City Council removed the Commercial General Zone from the list of 
zones where indoor crop production would be permitted.  This resulted in the requirement for 
the City Council to approve the revised ordinance 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends adoption of the ordinance as revised.  

OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 

The City Council is presented with the following options. 

1. Approve the second consideration of Ordinance 996 

Move to approve Ordinance No 996 as revised. 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their vote 
shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.  If a majority of the Council votes to approve, 
Ordinance No. 996 is enacted and will be presented to the Mayor for his approval. 

2. Approve the Ordinance with modifications  

Move to approve Ordinance No. 996 with the following changes … and direct staff to 
incorporate these changes into the Ordinance before the Ordinance is presented to the 
Mayor for his approval. 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their vote 
shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.  If a majority of the Council votes to approve, 
Ordinance No. 996 is enacted and will be presented to the Mayor for his approval. 



 

3. Return the Ordinance to Staff for further refinement 

Move to direct staff to modify Ordinance No. 996 with the following changes … and present 
the Ordinance to the City Council for further discussion and consideration at the August 1 
meeting. 

4. Retain the Code unchanged  

No motion is necessary. 

 



 

Ordinance No. 996 Amending SMC Title 17 Provisions Regarding Crop Production 

ORDINANCE NO. 996 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING STAYTON MUNICIPAL CODE (SMC) TITLE 
17, REGARDING THE ZONES IN WHICH CROP PRODUCTION IS 

PERMITTED 
 
WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statutes, Chapter 197 requires municipalities to adopt and 
implement a comprehensive land use planning program in accordance with statewide planning 
goals established by the Legislature and the Oregon Land Conservation and Development 
Commission; 

WHEREAS, the City of Stayton has adopted Title 17 of the Stayton Municipal Code as the Land 
Use and Development Code; 

WHEREAS, SMC Title 17, Chapter 20, Section 17.16.070 controls the uses in individual zones 
within the City and currently permits crop production in only the Industrial Agriculture Zone; 

WHEREAS, all of the land in the Industrial Agriculture Zone is owned by one entity, not 
providing opportunities for others to engage in crop production activities in the City; 

WHEREAS, there has been interest in indoor crop production activities in the City; 

WHEREAS, there are not opportunities for indoor crop production under the current zoning; 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is appropriate to allow indoor crop 
production in the Light Industrial and Industrial Commercial Zones; 

WHEREAS, the Stayton Planning Commission has initiated the process for amending the Land 
Use and Development Code and following a public hearing, has recommended that the Stayton 
City Council enact proposed amendments; and 

WHEREAS, the Stayton City Council, following a public hearing, does find that the following 
amendments are appropriate. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Stayton ordains: 

Section 1.  SMC Title 17, Chapter 16 amended.  Stayton Municipal Code, Title 17, Chapter 16 
is hereby amended by changing Table 17.16.070.1 to list Crop Production as a permitted use 
following site plan review in the Light Industrial and Industrial Commercial zones, with footnote 
15 applying to the use in these zones, restricting the use to indoors only. 

Section 2.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 30 days after adoption by the 
Stayton City Council and the Mayor’s signing. 

Section 3.  A copy of this Ordinance shall be furnished to the State of Oregon, Department of 
Land Conservation and Development forthwith. 

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL this 18th day of July, 2016.  



 

Ordinance No. 996 Amending SMC Title 17 Provisions Regarding Crop Production 

CITY OF STAYTON 

Signed: ____________, 2016 BY: _______________________________ 
 Henry A. Porter, Mayor 

Signed: ____________, 2016 ATTEST: _______________________________ 
 Keith D. Campbell, 
 City Administrator 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 _______________________________ 
 David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 
 
 
 

































 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Cindy Chauran, Associate Accountant 
   Elizabeth Baldwin, Utility Billing Clerk 
 
DATE:   July 18, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Monthly Finance Department Report 
  
 
Attached are the month-end reports for the major operating funds of the City which include 
General Fund, Public Works Administration Fund, Library Fund, Water Fund, Storm Water Fund, 
Sewer Fund, Street Fund, and Swimming Pool Fund. If you have any questions, please let us 
know. 
 
Departmental Activity 

 June 2016 May 2016 
Utility Billing   

Number of Bills Mailed 2,658 2,652 
Number of Bills Emailed 342 341 
Delinquent Notices Sent Out 481 500 
Courtesy Delinquent Notices Sent to Landlords 139 146 
Notified of Impending Shut-Off & Penalty 137 118 
Customers with Interrupted Services Non-Payment 27 16 
Services Still Disconnected 1 1 

Accounts Payable   
Number of Checks Issued 225 224 
Total Amount of Checks $1,054,119.45 $530,572.43 

 











 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Kelli Stevens, Administrative Assistant 
 
DATE:   July 18th, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Works Monthly Operating Report for June 2016 
      
KEY ACTIVITIES STATUS 
 
• WWTP Facility Effluent flows: 31.24 million gallons were treated during June. The highest flow 

was 1.24 million gallons on June 2nd and the lowest flow was 0.85 million gallons 
on June 26th. The average flow was 1.04 million gallons. Total rainfall for June 
was 1.47 inches.  

 
• WTP  Highest production day was 3,064,000 gallons on June 25th, 2016. 
 
• Water System Replaced 5 meters. Replaced a meter stop at 1087 Douglas. Replaced a meter 

stop at 1282 Third Ave. Cannery meter on Ida was tested. Installed 20 radio 
readers. 
 

• Streets   Swept 180 curb miles and removed approximately 67 cubic yards of material. 
The gravel streets were graded and dust control was applied to the graded 
streets. 
 

 Parks  Volunteers: Community Service –0 hours, Volunteer – 0 hours. 
    Life skills High School Students – 0 hours. Total = 0 hours. 
    Parks Board Volunteer Hours – 7 hours total –7 Volunteers. 
• Building Permits   

            Permit Type Issued SDC’s Paid 
New Single Family Dwelling   
Residential Building Addition/Alter/Other 1  
Commercial Building Addition/Alter/Other 1  
Electrical 2  
Mechanical    
Plumbing   

TOTAL 4  
One (1) Residential SDC = $10,357.00 + $670.00 for Mill Creek SDC + Storm 
Water SDC $1861.00 or $2669.00 

 
Public Works Monthly Operating Report  Page 1 
July 18th, 2016 



 

 

 

CITY OF STAYTON 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Henry A Porter and the Stayton City Council 

 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning and Development 

 DATE: July 18, 2016 

 SUBJECT: Report of Activities for June, 2016 

  

Continued to work with Friends of Old Town Stayton 

Planning Commission meeting reviewed two development proposals, one zoning map 
amendment and one Code amendment.  

Attended Stayton Area Rotary Club to make presentation on recent development activity 

Working with Public Works Department staff, improvements to the Geographic Information 
System continued 

 
















	CITY OF STAYTON
	M E M O R A N D U M
	FROM:  Kelli Stevens, Administrative Assistant



